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P R O C E E D I N GS

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Welcome to the

Policy, Research and Technical Assistance Committee .

Today we have a short agenda here so after the

roll call we'll proceed with our business .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Board Members Huff .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Here .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Relis .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Here .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Chairman Egigian .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Here .

We've had Item 1 and Item 3 pulled .

And Item 2 is consideration of 1994-95 tire grant

and fund allocations .

MS . GILDART : Good morning, Chairman and members .

Today we'll be presenting for your consideratio n

the staff recommendation for allocating the monies in th e

tire recycling fund to the tire grant program .

In addition, under the Board's new grant approva l

process we are also presenting the criteria which will b e

used to rank and score the applications .

We are also providing status reports on some o f

the grant proposals that we have funded previously .

As background the tire program was established b y

the Legislature in 1989 .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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The funding is through a fee that is charged by a

tire dealer to the consumer when he turns in an old tire fo r

disposal .

This brings to the Board approximately $4 million

a year, of which one to two million dollars has been use d

for grants and contracts .

This year Board staff has identified as it s

primary concern the illegal tire piles . The Permitting and

Enforcement Division will be identifying stockpiles of tire s

across the states and which ones have no known owner o r

responsible party . These piles will be ranked according to

their threat either to public health and safety or th e

environment .

If no responsible party is located the State ma y

remediate and seek payment at a later date .

A portion of our grant money is going to b e

directed or staff has proposed to be directed to loca l

governments to assist them on their side of the cleanup an d

remediation problem .

Typically the local governments would handle some

of the smaller piles or litter control . They can do this

through direct collection or through holding amnesty days .

We will be working closely with local governmen t

for the proper handling and disposal of the tires whic h

includes either recycling or combustion .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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As you saw last month one of the methods that i s

appropriate for the handling of the old, worn out an d

damaged tires is through energy recovery in cement kilns .

We feel that State assistance is vital t o

addressing the problem of the illegal tires because there' s

no clear funding source other than the State .

Typically, the newly generated waste tires was no t

only the fee that the dealer charges for the State, but hi s

own disposal costs too . So when a consumer turns a tire i n

that fee can be anywhere up to a dollar or two per tire .

The money follows the tire through the system ,

through sorting, processing, hauling and final disposal ,

ensuring its proper handling at every step .

The illegal stockpiles of tires have no suc h

source of funding and this is why we feel at this time th e

State is going to be more involved .

Today we're going to have Tom Dietsch, of th e

Grants and Research Branch, presenting the status reports o f

some of the past funded grants .

And then Nguyen Van Hanh, who is the manager ,

we're in a transition, I'm not quite sure of the new name o f

the new section, but he will be the manager of the overal l

tire recycling program . He willpresent the scoring

criteria and the budget allocating the tire monies .

And then we will be happy to take any questions .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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MR . DIETSCH: Thank you, Martha .

Good morning .

During the two previous funding cycles $2 . 9

million was awarded for business and technology development

and local government proposals .

Please refer to Table 1 of the agenda packet fo r

details .

Staff believes that Board funding for grants ha s

been allocated in the appropriate categories to benefi t

tire-related business enterprises, researchers and loca l

governments .

Providing financial support for business

development and research endeavors entails taking a

calculated risk . Some of the grant recipients may not b e

successful .

Nevertheless staff believes that a significant

number of projects recommended for funding will succeed .

Progress reports and final reports will continue

to serve as the best indicators for that success .

Although all grant projects from the previous tw o

years are still in progress, preliminary results for many

fiscal year '92-93 grant recipients demonstrate near

completion of project task and a good potential for success

past the term of the grant .

The following fiscal year '92-93 grant project s

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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demonstrate good potential for continued success after th e

completion of the grant .

SRI International is developing an electromagneti c

radiation absorber to provide sensitive electrical equipmen t

and potentially people from a wide range of frequencie s

generated from equipment including computers, radi o

transmissions, cellular phones and radar .

Preliminary research has demonstrated that tir e

rubber is a very effective absorber of electromagneti c

radiation .

Waste tire rubber will be fabricated int o

inexpensive architectural tiles and used to line buildin g

interiors .

The few electromagnetic absorbers on the marke t

today are very expensive and are durable enough fo r

architectural applications .

Company representatives are pursuing a patent a t

this time .

The City of Lancaster received three grant award s

in fiscal year '92-93 . The manufacturer of compost bins ,

the development of an asphalt sealant from recycled carbo n

black, and the demonstration of a crumb rubber calle d

Rebound as a soil amendment .

Of the three projects the Rebound demonstration i s

closest to successful completion .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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Proponents of the Rebound system claim that th e

treatment reduces soil compaction, resulting in reduction s

in water consumption, fertilizer use and ground-relate d

sport injuries .

The City has installed two adjacent basebal l

fields, one with the Rebound amendments and one without as a

control .

During construction 140,000 pounds of crumb rubbe r

were rototilled into the test field . All other conditions

including watering, fertilizing, and recreational use ar e

similar to allow for comparisons .

Preliminary results indicate that the basebal l

field with the Rebound amendments resulted in a wate r

infiltration rate 50 percent higher than the control .

Also the Rebound field is 40 percent les s

compacted and the root depth and root thickness are almos t

double that of the control field .

Burke Industries is developing a residentia l

roofing shake using waste tire rubber, flame retardants, U V

inhibitors, and fillers .

The shakes are 25 percent rubber, are molded usin g

pressure and heat and are lighter than concrete tiles .

Company representatives are seeking testing an d

evaluation of the shakes from the International Conferenc e

of Building Officials, ICBO, and are hoping it receives a

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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Class A rating .

A roofing contractor has expressed interest in th e

shakes and will install them on a 1400 square foot house i n

December as a demonstration project .

BAS Recycling has received a grant to develop a

playground safety mat using tire rubber that would meet ne w

safety requirements, impact attenuation of surface system s

under and around playground equipment, and comply with the

American with Disability Act .

The safety mat needed must be solid to allo w

wheelchair access while also providing a cushion for fallin g

children .

Preliminary testing results have shown that th e

safety mat can meet or exceed the requirements for impac t

attenuation . Company researchers are currently trying t o

reduce the thickness of the mat to minimize weight whil e

maintaining the impact requirements .

Although fiscal year '93-94 grant projects hav e

only recently began, several recipients are demonstratin g

achievements already .

The County of Kern received a tire recycling gran t

to reduce their problem of illegal tire dumping by educatin g

the public, cleaning up existing tire piles, and providin g

amnesty days for county residents .

County representatives have already produced a n

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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educational brochure to be distributed to residents . Th e

brochure contains tips on extending tire life, source

reduction, benefits of retreads, reuse, and information on

recycling and proper disposal .

Champion Recycling received a grant to develop an d

test a polyurethane and crumb rubber composite material fo r

solid bicycle tires . While solid tires have the obviou s

benefit of flat-free performance, company researchers wil l

work to overcome the stiff ride and increased rolling

resistance associated with the solid tires .

Because polyurethane is relatively expensive th e

use of crumb rubber should also reduce the overall cost of

the product .

Jackson and Church, a Michigan-based company ,

received a grant to perform a market analysis and develop a

marketing strategy and business plan for producing and

distributing liquid rubber in California .

Liquid rubber is produced by blending crumb rubbe r

with a reagent and exposed to ultrasonic sound waves . The

resulting liquid can be spray applied or products can b e

dipped. When dry a uniform rubber coating or sheet i s

produced .

While the company is investigating new potentia l

markets the product has been used in Ohio as a substitute

for HDPE landfill liners .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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Company representatives state that the proces s

does not produce emissions .

These examples of grant projects are but a few of

the potentially successful projects .

Many other business development, research an d

local government projects have been funded and are eithe r

nearing completion or have just begun .

Although most projects are progressing, several o f

the fiscal year '92-93 recipients have encountered some

problems .

Moritmer Tree Service proposed to use whole tire s

as tree root barriers, but decided not to proceed with th e

contract .

Marine Forest Society proposed to construct a n

artificial reef out of waste tires, but has been unavailabl e

to begin the project due to permitting issues .

And California Recycling Company proposed t o

construct a sound barrier prototype using plastics and tir e

rubber, but cannot be reached by phone and has not responde d

to written inquiries .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : They took the money

and ran .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Do they have the check ?

MR. DIETSCH : They do have one check ,

unfortunately .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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We did receive a first quarterly report and sa w

progress and we did pay that one and now they can't b e

reached .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Do we know now to get

in touch with these people?

MR. DIETSCH : We're trying . We've tried reaching

some of their subcontractors, people they've purchase d

materials from, and they are also looking for them as well .

So it doesn't look good .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : That throws up a red

flag that we're not doing a good enough job here as far a s

qualifying people for these grants, I think . Persona l

opinion .

MR. DIETSCH : California Recycling Company ha s

done other recycling projects in the state . They have been

doing other research in plastics . So they were known, too ,

so it is a bit of a surprise .

Mr. Nguyen Van Hanh will now discuss the fisca l

year '94-95 program .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Ask a question about

this shingle that is made out of rubber, the roofin g

material . Is that fireproof ?

MR . DIETSCH : That's what the testing will decid e

at the ICBO, the International Conference of Buildin g
0

Officials .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : That's what will be

decided?

MR. DIETSCH : Yes . That will determine if it get s

the Class A rating or not as well .

It does have fire retardants built in on the top .

That's what the brownish material on top is, W inhibitor s

and flame retardants .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : How does it compare

cost wise with the other stuff ?

MR . DIETSCH : The contractor's asked not t o

discuss that at this time .

It could be about almost as expensive as

comparable composite concrete and paper shingle .

At this time they're trying to reduce the weight .

The one you have in front of you is a littl e

solid, but the new mold they're going to create will be abl e

to block out much of that material on the back side and tha t

should also reduce the cost .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Has there ever been a

solid tire made ?

MR. DIETSCH : My child's tricycle has somethin g

similar to that, and I just noticed .

MS . GILDART : Historically all tires were solid .

I don't think pneumatic tires came in until like the 1920 s

or '30s .

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : That's true, I guess .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : There's a tire now

that, I shouldn't say there's a tire, there is a solutio n

that goes inside of a tire . They use it in truck tires .

And people in the waste industry use that for a long time

because it prevented them from getting flat tires going i n

and out of the dump .

MR. DIETSCH: At the moment the grantee i s

pursuing a bicycle tire, but there's possible application s

for heavy equipment and hauling also if this prove s

successful .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : I find it hard to

understand if we're giving grant money and then people don' t

want to discuss the cost of what they're building . This to

me seems like give us the money, we'll do what we want wit h

it, and don't ask any questions .

MS . GILDART: These grants haven't come to ful l

conclusion . They're a two-year grant cycle and they were

awarded a year and a half ago .

At the conclusion of the grant then we do require ,

you know, full information on costs and the assessment o f

potential use in the state and at that time there will be

further economic and financial data .

MR. DIETSCH : Mr . Chairman, also this informatio n

is still being developed . Because they aren't done and

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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because of the scale that they're producing these at it' s

really hard to judge what will happen on the commercia l

level .

So they're still working on it and we should hav e

the information at the closure of the grant .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : We may have some

others that we call and we don't have any answers .

MR. DIETSCH : I hope not .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : It illustrates to m e

that there's something lacking in what we're doing as far a s

giving grants . If somebody can leave town and we can't find

them, that means we don't have enough information about the m

to begin with . Do they own a house, what's their socia l

security number, all these other things that might enhanc e

the ability of whoever is looking for these people to find

them, you know .

MS . GILDART : There are some legal recourses we

could use to pursue the grantee .

This is a fairly recent occurrence that we hadn' t

been able to contact .

As Tom indicated, there had been the firs t

quarterly report and some phone conversations .

And we're just now attempting to track down th e

grantee .

We thought we would bring this up to let you kno w

•
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that not everything is wine and roses .

But we will be looking into it and attempting t o

recover the money if no further action is taken on the

grant .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Any further

questions?

MR. VAN HANH : Good morning, Mr . Chairman ,

committee members . I'm Nguyen Van Hanh .

My presentation will be focused on the propose d

budget for 1994-95 and the criteria and process for

evaluation and scoring of the grant applications of the tir e

grant program .

With regard to the budget, as Martha Gildar t

mentioned earlier, the appropriation for the California tir e

recycling management fund for fiscal year '94-95 is $4 . 1

million .

And out of this total budget $3 .1 million has been

allocated to the State operations category and one millio n

has been allocated to the local assistance category .

In addition to the housekeeping contract such a s

Board of Equalization collection, contract concepts hav e

been previously approved by the Board for the permittin g

programs and also for the second biennial waste conferenc e

in 1995 .

Staff propose that $700,000 be allocated fo r

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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eligible business development and research applications, th e

same level as last year .

The staff proposes a total of $657,000 be

allocated for the local government programs, which i s

$357,000 more than last year .

To accomplish this staff propose that $357,00 0

currently available as unallocated consultant an d

professional service fund in the state operation category b e

assigned to the local government programs in the loca l

assistance category .

Currently staff is exploring two possibl e

mechanisms to make this money available for grants . Either ,

A, use the Section 28 letter process to move the money fro m

the state operations category to the local assistanc e

category for the local government programs ; or, B, leaving

the money where it is and develop individual standar d

contracts with successful grantees .

The proposed increase in allocation of resource t o

local government programs is intended to address the nee d

for additional costs, such as transportation costs fo r

registered haulers to move a large volume of waste tire s

from existing stockpiles to efficient uses such as fue l

supplement in cement kilns .

	

-

	

-

Staff propose three grant fund categories .

The first one is business development . And up to

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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$75,000 per project will be available to fund hard t o

finance elements of business such as business pla n

development, market analysis and strategy development, cos t

of work-related supplies, and costs associated wit h

permitting, licensing and testing .

The second element is research . Up to $75,000 pe r

project will be available for experimental and theoretica l

research relating to the recycling, reuse, reconstitution o r

transformation of waste tire or waste tire rubber .

The last one, local government programs . Up to

75,000 per cooperative project will be made available fo r

innovative projects which require at least 225 percen t

matching funds .

Proposed categories include public education ,

cleanup and collection, cooperative efforts with businesse s

and other projects that directly facilitate the reduction o f

stockpiled tires .

The staff also propose the scoring process in ou r

presentation today . The staff propose here that both the

general criteria and category-specific criteria be used to

score applicants of the tire grant program .

The general criteria, attached is Table 2 in th e

agenda packet, reflects overall standard criteria, includin g

the quantity of used tires to be diverted from landfills ,

availability of markets for recycling tire products, abilit y

•

•
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of applicant to complete the propose project, et cetera .

The category-specific criteria also attached i s

Tables 3, 4 and 5 in your package, for the three categorie s

of business development, research and local governmen t

programs .

Category-specific criteria are refinement of and

complement to the general criteria and to be used by th e

grant review committee as a uniform scoring guideline .

In the business development criteria the staf f

will be paying attention to the four components .

The first one is manufacture of products an d

aggressive marketing of the project .

---The second is consumption of whole or processe d

tire components .

Third, purchase of feedstock and supplies fro m

small California businesses .

And, last, ability to create and retain jobs .

And in here you will see that for each of th e

components here the specific criteria would total up to 4 0

points relative to 100 points from the general criteria .

Here is the staff proposal that we pay specifi c

attention to each of the components as we outline here fo r

your review and approval .

The next criteria here is with the research group .

The research criteria would involve, first, innovativ e

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345
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technique and process or product .

We also look at the potential market for

technology of product of the project .

The likelihood of commercialization .

And other also the availability of other funds

committed to the project to be sure that the project i s

financed adequately to reach completion .

In the local government criteria the staff will b e

paying attention to the four criteria here, which includ e

cooperatives between local government and the business

enterprise .

It is the partnership issue that has received s o

much emphasis in our current activities here .

We also look at tires cleaned up or collected t o

be properly recycled or combusted .

The staff also propose certain proposal expansio n

of the existing projects .

The last one is public education component, whic h

emphasize recycling and proper disposal .

These criteria are intended to give preference t o

the proposal that address areas of key concern to the Board .

And the final score for each of the application s

will be to sum up general criteria scores as well as th e

category-specific scores .

In the likely event that available funding i s

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



•

a

•

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

12

1 3

14

15

1 6

17

18

19

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

25

1 9
insufficient to fund all eligible projects, preferenc e

criteria scores will ensure that the most qualified gran t

proposals are funded .

Due to the changing nature of the used and wast e

tire management, staff also propose that review criteria b e

reconsidered each fiscal year .

I'd like to touch upon the proposed ranking

criteria .

The staff propose that the review committee forme d

to score and rank grant proposals be comprised of staff fro m

the grants -- the existing Grants and Research Branch ,

Financial Assistance Branch, Permits Branch and the Marke t

Development Branch .

Review committee staff will score proposals

according to presentation and merit gauging each proposal b y

the general criteria and also the category-specific criteri a

for the category in which the proposal is competing .

The review committee will compile the gran t

proposal in four categorical lists, list A, B, C and D .

The list A proposals would be made of proposal s

receiving the highest scores and recommended for funding .

List B proposals would include those receivin g

subordinate scores, but deemed worthy of funding if fund s

are available .

List C includes those proposals not recommende d
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for funding this fiscal year .

And list D proposals are those who ar e

disqualified in the competition .

A few words about the proposed application an d

review process and the schedule .

A notice of funds available is proposed to b e

distributed in December this year announcing to the publi c

of the Board's third cycle of the tire recycling gran t

program and the availability of $1 .3 million in grant

funding .

And this of course is $300,000 or so more tha n

that what we had last year . Last year we only had $ 1

million to deal with .

The staff propose a final filing date of 3 :00 p .m .

on February 24, 1995, and after which time applications wil l

not be accepted .

The staff will keep a log of applications receive d

noting the category, the level of apparent completeness an d

amount of grant funds requested .

Upon full accounting the staff will divide th e

proposals by category for delivery to the review committe e

staff .

The review committee's funding recommendation s

will be then presented to the Policy, Research and Technica l

Assistance Committee at the April 1995 meeting .
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In conclusion, California is faced with a

challenge of managing properly, responsibly, the 29 millio n

used and waste tires entering the waste stream annually .

The tire recycling grant program is specifically

designed to encourage the increased use of waste tires .

With the approval of the funding allocation ,

funding categories, criteria and scoring process for 1994-9 5

fiscal year, the tire recycling program will continue t o

facilitate the reuse and recycling of waste tires whil e

promoting diversion from landfill disposal and stockpiling .

The options that the staff would like to presen t

to the committee today would include :

One, submit the item to the Board, which

recommends the staff implement the proposed fiscal yea r

'94-95 tire grant funding allocations, grant fund

categories, and criteria and scoring process as the staf f

just presented to you .

The second option is for the committee to direc t

staff to revise the proposal and submit the item to th e

Board, which recommends that staff implement the revise d

'94-95 fiscal year tire grant program funding allocations ,

grant fund categories, and criteria and scoring processes .

And the staff recommendation is that we would lik e

the committee to consider and approve the proposed '94-9 5

program funding allocations in categories and criteria an d

PETERS SHORTHAND REPORTING CORPORATION (916) 362-2345



•

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

12

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

25

2 2
scoring process as we just presented to the committee .

Thank you . And we would like very much to addres s

or try to address any questions you may have . Thank you .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Any questions for th e

committee?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : A few questions .

First, then there is a theoretical score of 14 0

points ; is that correct ?

MR . VAN HANH : Yes, sir . The total score would be

140 and that would include 100 points from the genera l

scoring and the 40 from the category-specific scoring .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : And why not a higher

number of points, say, to the quantity diverted? That's a n

open question . I'm just curious why, since it is

fundamentally what we're dealing with is a tire problem . So

why wouldn't that be significantly a higher factor ?

MS . GILDART: We could make it higher . It was

comparative, relative . One project would receive more

points than another as a way of helping us to rank th e

proposals .

You may remember the last couple of years we hav e

done this, typically we have close to 100 applications and

yet only have funds to do 25 to 30 .

And it's critical that we can differentiate

between the proposals .
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So what we are looking at is relative scoring .

The absolute score we can make whatever is th e

pleasure of the committee or the Board .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Just to share my

perspective, I would like to see that upped a bit .

And then lastly why -- how are we going to

evaluate the program? I mean this discussion came up i n

contracts and I think this whole question of upping ou r

evaluation process so year to year we have benchmarks fo r

what are we try to accomplish here and how well did we d o

and on the basis of that what will we do next yea r

differently or the same .

MS . GILDART: Because of the nature of the grants ,

they're two-year grant period, the recipients really aren' t

in a stage to be evaluated until close to the end of tha t

period .

And that's why today is the first day you'v e

actually had any status report .

I would say in this coming year is when we mus t

look very closely at what has been achieved and where we ca n

make improvements . The information is just coming in now t o

help us assess that .

MR. VAN HANH : If I may add, Mr . Relis, your

question really deals with what are the issue that not to o

long ago we brought up in terms of evaluating a series o f
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grants from the Board here .

And what happened was that among the grant s

program, just entered the three-year of the program . The

staff in the past as far as the grant program is concerned ,

we only have one PY . One person in charge in program

management for the grants .

We, particularly I myself, in consultation with

Martha Gildart, tried to initiate what we call it, the field

visits for evaluation projects, not only for this one, bu t

also for the household hazardous waste program and the used

oil program as well .

The staff just begin a number of field visits to

review the status of the program to see where the problem s

are and also in conjunction with the current development and

the problems existing in large stockpiles of waste tires .

So we will certainly note your remark here and we

will be looking into various ways of dealing with th e

existing grants we have as well as the overall aspect of th e

effectiveness of the program in relation to the fundin g

sources and activities generated associated with the gran t

program .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Mr . Huff .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Yes . Question .

It's up to $75,000 per project? Is that

statutory ?
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MS . GILDART : No . There's no limit in the

statute .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : That was our decision ?

MS . GILDART : Correct .

MR . VAN HANH : Correct .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : To spread the money ?

MS . GILDART : Correct .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Is it just my thought that

I think that's quite appropriate, but I think that whe n

we're handing out a check for 75,000 we have to recogniz e

that that's not a whole lot of money in this world .

MR . VAN HANH : Sir, may I add to the fact tha t

this is up to 75,000 for each project . It means that the

staff can very well recommend to the committee and to th e

Board a figure below 75,000 depending on the nature of th e

project proposal .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : That's right .

But and I notice here for example many of th e

existing, the local government for '92-3 we're talkin g

40,000 amounts and in fact City of San Diego was 4,945 ,

apparently .

So we aren't handing out large checks and we mad e

that decision that that was the right way to do business, s o

that's fine with me .

But I think that once we've made that decision
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that we aren't going to hand out massive checks that we

ought to take that into account when we start thinking about

how much we're going to demand in terms of - -

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : What they do .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : What they do, how they

prove themselves, et cetera, et cetera .

I'm not saying that we should hand them the check

and just, you know, tell them to go forth and do good . We

do need some accountability. But I think that we're talking

about less than volumes in terms of reports and that sort of

thing .

MS . GILDART : That's a very valid point .

When you look at the size of the problem we'r e

facing, 29 million tires each year are being added to the

waste stream and there's somewhere upwards of 30 millio n

tires already in stockpiles, when you look at how much money

we actually have to address that problem is a couple millio n

dollars a year .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : It's a pittance .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Yes .

MS . GILDART : Yes . We're trying to nudge the

system along and sort of encourage or bribe or whatever .

It's not a big stick . It's not a big carrot .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : In fact this is kind of a

shotgun approach ; isn't it? We're trying to hand out a s

•
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many little grants as we can in the hopes that somewhere ou t

there someone will suddenly shout, Eureka . Is that not

really the concept here ?

MS . GILDART : That's one way of putting it, yes .

MR. VAN HANH : Yes, sir .

If I may add to the fact that in the process o f

helping with recycling businesses dealing with waste tire s

the amount of money here, some of the money would go t o

research and development companies or start-up companies i n

need of seed money to initiate a business . And certainly

among them there would be viable enterprises to be full y

developed into larger companies in the future .

So the approach here is very much like the shotgu n

approach you just characterized .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Okay . So, you know, when

you have that as your operating philosophy, you know ,

there's scoring systems and then there are scoring systems .

To me it doesn't make any difference . We're just going to

pick a bunch of likely looking applicants and if they loo k

like they have got their act together and the numbers add u p

we're going to drop 75,000 or some amount underneath that o n

them and see what they can produce .

MR . VAN HANH : Yes, sir .

However, the reason we detail out both the genera l

and the category-specific criteria is that we like th e
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members of the review committee to be systematic an d

uniform .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Oh, yeah . You have to

have, government has to have its process . But that's all it

is, it's a process . So you can pick one process or anothe r

process . You have to have a process .

MR. VAN HANH : And also we would like very much t o

bring this issue again every year to the committee and th e

Board to be sure that any indication from the field that a

certain direction should be made to address emerging issue ,

that would be the occasion for the committee and the Board

to make the decision .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I had a couple othe r

questions, Mr . Chairman .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Go ahead .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Now, as I understand it ,

the item before us is basically the tire grant funding

allocations, categories, criteria, scoring process .

But it seems to me that by implication we'r e

also -- we have this idea of the $375,023 to put into th e

local government from the category that the Legislature ha d

put it in, which is a category I assume that we proposed to

the Legislature a year ago and they just did what we asked

and now we want to do it differently .

So by accepting these allocations we're als o
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blessing that idea, if you will, and by implication then

we're backing into the total appropriation and kind o f

backing into the other numbers ; aren't we?

MS . GILDART : Backing into the other contract

numbers or the other grant numbers ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Well, the other -- by

approving this at this level we're only leaving so much lef t

of the appropriation for the other things .

MS . GILDART: Actually, it's the other way around .

Because of the process that the Board went through o n

allocating the contract concepts and their funds, we've

already designated the dollars for the remedial action and

the conference and those other contracts .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : This is the residual .

Okay . That's good .

I would suggest, I assume that the proposed budge t

for '5-6 probably reflects state operation amount probabl y

consistent with what the '4-5 budget proposed .

And so I would suggest that we consider a May

revision letter to put more money in local assistance and

less money in state operations, if that's the way we think

we should be operating .

Because the device of using Section 28 o r

something like that is not as good as getting it writte n

into the budget the way we want it to begin with .
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And I suspect that probably the best course woul d

not be your Section 28 course, but the second alternative .

MS . GILDART: Standard agreements . Yes . That' s

something we are discussing with the administration divisio n

now, the best process .

What we need from the Board is the approval of th e

concept that those monies should be made available to loca l

government .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I'm all for giving local

government additional sums .

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : That concept was als o

discussed in the context of the contract concepts earlie r

this year when it was noted as an asterisk that staff wa s

proposing to shift money from contracts to this item and a t

that time the Board did not disagree with that and left i t

for a later decision . And now we're at that point .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Okay .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Earlier in the report

there was talk about 1127 process . What is this? You said

something about 1127 process .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I think he said Section

28 .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Section 28 .

MR . VAN HANH : Sir, Mr . Chairman, I could no t

recall that I said that . In case I did not say clearly, may
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I repeat it was the Section 28 letter process that wa s

proposed one of the two mechanisms to move the money fro m

one category to another .

The other mechanism is the standard agreement tha t

we will conclude with successful applicants, sir .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : It's budget speak .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : That's why I don' t

understand it .

All right . Now, what do you want from thi s

committee?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I'd move staf f

recommendation myself .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : We have a motion .

Staff recommendation .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : You don't want to up the ,

just the criteria of diverting more, just a bit, elevatin g

the points?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Oh, we can . I don't think

it makes much difference really .

MS . GILDART : It might be a way of communicatin g

to the recipient how important it is that to the Board tha t

a large number of tires be diverted .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : My overlooking this ,

we have somebody who wants to speak on this item, so can w e

hold - -
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COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Let's hold the motion .

It's on the floor . We can come back to it after we hea r

someone speak .

I would ask one other question, Mr . Chair, since

we're holding the motion .

The ballfield in Lancaster where the roots are

deeper and the water is less, what about the number o f

double play balls ?

MR. DIETSCH : Not enough information at this time .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : If the field is softer the

ball is going to die .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : That might harm the

game totally .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : There are lot fewer

errors .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Fewer errors, but you'l l

have to charge the ground ball .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : That's right .

Endless ramifications to this change .

MR . DIETSCH : The teams will have to decide whic h

field they want to play on, the control or the - -

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Talk about the home field

advantage .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Do we have any

further questions ?
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COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Is it a level playing

field?

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : No other questions?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Where is Evan when I

really want to tease him .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Just walked in .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Is that your report

there?

MS . GILDART : Was there someone that wanted t o

speak?

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Yes . Ann Ludwig .

MS . LUDWIG : Thank you, Mr . Chairman . My name i s

Ann Ludwig . I'm the zone administrator for th e

Oakland-Berkeley Recycling Market Development Zone .

I applaud your efforts to support the busines s

development and research component .

I share Chairman Egigian's concern about th e

viability and the long-term potential of some of th e

businesses funded through the grant program .

And I would like to suggest that this program can

be used in a similar way to the recycling zone loan progra m

as a way to encourage business development and long-term jo b

creation and retention in the state .

To further those goals I would like to sugges t

that the Board work with the zones where it's appropriate to
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assess the market development, financial self-sufficiency ,

likelihood of future success, and the ability to demonstrat e

benefit to California society .

I think that the zones, I work very closely wit h

businesses in my zone . I know if they exist . I get call s

from the chamber of commerce . I get calls from the people' s

landlord if there's a problem .

So I think they won't go away very quickly or ver y

easily .

And so I would just want to suggest that on th e

criteria that we look for some way of assessing whether

these are considered viable sustainable businesses in the

community, whether that is a zone or not and make sure

there's some check there .

Also just a minor detail, under the busines s

development general criteria I think that financia l

self-sufficiency is important, but it seems that we have two

categories, the prospect for the project to be financiall y

self-sufficient and the probability that the project can be

implemented and completed with other sources of funds .

I'm not quite sure what the difference betwee n

those is, although I think the total of 15 percent i s

important in that because I think that's what's going t o

ensure the long-term viability .

Thank you .
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COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Any questions?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : I think that's a good

suggestion .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Thank you very much .

Okay . Are we ready for the motion ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Yep .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Mr . Huff?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Yes, Mr . Relis .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Are you still open to, i n

a friendly amendment to up the criteria for diverting ?

I think it would also read better with th e

_Legislature that we were aiming our program - -

MS . GILDART: Would you like to specify the

amount?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : I wouldn't go crazy o n

it . I would maybe go to - -

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : We know you're a wild and

crazy guy .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : That's right .

Maybe up to 30 and then that - -

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : What do you take down ?

What do you think is less important ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Well, gee .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : It's got to add to 100 .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : I know . It always gets
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difficult when you change a number .

MS . GILDART: Given the remarks of the most recen t

speaker, I would not look at the self-sufficiency an d

funding categories to lower them . They appear to be

important ones .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : In fact, Mr . Egigian would

suggest that maybe some additional attention be paid to - -

MS . GILDART: We had a suggestion from counse l

that the total could be 110 and then with the 40 criteri a

specific - -

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : 150 .

MS . GILDART : It would be a total of 150 .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Symmetry .

I like that suggestion since it's so much easie r

than trying to figure it out here .

MS . GILDART : Okay . Simple .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Hey, I love it when a pla n

comes together .

So on Table 2 - -

MS . GILDART : The first criteria, the quantity o f

used tires .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : That becomes 30 .

The total then becomes --

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : 110 .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : 110 .
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MS . GILDART : We would also add 10 points in the

same category for the research and local government so tha t

they're all 110 .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : So research becomes 10 and

local government, that becomes 20 ; is that correct?

MS . GILDART : Correct .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Okay. Then when you add

that 110 with the appropriate table on the next page, the 4 0

points possible there, you have 150 possible points .

MR . SPHAR : The change to the note .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I'll buy that .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : You second that

motion, Paul ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Right there .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Okay . Let's have a

roll call .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Board Members Huff .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Aye .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Relis .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Aye .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Chairman Egigian .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Aye .

MS . GILDART : Is this on consent ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : It is as far as I' m

concerned .
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COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : What do you think ?

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : The committee has no

problem putting it on consent .

MR . SPHAR : The agenda item has gone to the Board ,

already has the old figures in it, and you've made som e

changes .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : It can't be .

MR. SPHAR : I suggest you take it up for a vot e

there .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Yeah .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Okay .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : The way that my book

was put together I went by the addendum on Item No . 1 ,

consideration of impact of Public Utilities Commissio n

deregulation of utilities on Board programs .

Have a report by staff ?

MS . GILDART : Good morning . I didn't think tha t

the chair would cool off .

Today I'm presenting a brief status report on th e

Public Utility Commission's proposed restructuring of th e

electric utility industry .

The title of the addendum actually say s

consideration . We had a phone call from the Board meeting

up to the administrative assistant's office and that was th e

first title we thought of and actually there isn't anythin g
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for consideration or action, it is merely a status report

today .

I believe that there are some people who wish t o

speak on the item .

Okay . One of our tasks has been to contact th e

other state agencies to learn what efforts that they're

undertaking in this issue . And we have had discussions with

Cal EPA, the Energy Commission and the Air Resources Board .

However, there does seem to be sort of a shared

approach from these agencies to wait for further action

until after today's election .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Gee .

MS . GILDART : What appears to be planned, i f

things go as anticipated, the Energy Commission is going t o

be developing a collaborative of state agencies and public

and private entities who are concerned .

I've just had a conversation today . They have

been directed by the Governor's office to look at three

aspects of the restructuring .

One is the diversity issue, which would include

the place that biomass should have :

The other is research and development and what

sorts of funding should be made available for those efforts .

Then something called demand side management ,

which would include the social programs such as conservation
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efforts and lifeline rates and other such .

They're planning to hold their first meeting o f

the state agencies on December 13th and we have bee n

invited . We will take part in that .

The agenda is being developed by Chairman

Imbrecht .

They're quite interested to hear what our

perspective of the issues are .

One of the other efforts that staff has bee n

involved in is trying to get a better handle on the number s

and this is definitely a work in progress .

The information we had used in the backgroun d

saner came from the Biomass Producers Association and the

Energy Commission and were published in 1993 . And they had

come up with an estimate that of the seven and a hal f

million tons of biomass, 800,000 or so was urban wood waste ,

which is the waste steam we've identified as most likely t o

impact landfill diversion .

In conversations with several different entitie s

that number has definitely risen, but to pinpoint it exactl y

at this time is not possible . It is somewhere between 1 . 6

and two and a quarter million .

That number fluctuates because-of what i s

available, what is coming into either the material recover y

facilities or the landfills or through the word processor s
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and it does fluctuate .

What we feel and what we are looking at in th e

staff report is that somewhere between one and two millio n

tons will be affected if any of these plants close down .

Now, we're trying to put that in perspective . If

you look at the statewide impact, the remaining landfil l

capacity on average is 18 years for the state . And that one

to two million tons would represent 6 to 12 months capacity .

So the potential exists of reducing state landfill capacit y

to 17 years, which is not a highly significant impact .

However, when you look at the local level tha t

impact could be quite significant .

For example, Placer County, which has 11 years o f

landfill capacity remaining, had two biomass plants, one o f

which has just closed . A total of 134,000 tons of biomas s

had been handled by those plants, of which 46 or 47 thousan d

tons was urban wood waste .

A portion of that urban wood waste was the wast e

stream from Marin County, which has been spoken to i n

previous meetings .

The remaining 25 or so thousand tons, which i s

generated within Placer, would most likely be redirected t o

Placer County landfill . The Marin County, as you've heard ,

would also go to landfill . And so one would have to look a t

those specific locations .
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As I said, with Placer County having 11 years o r

less of capacity that could be significant .

We're also trying to look at the ripple effect o f

biomass plant closure, which includes everything from th e

effect on the materials recovery facilities, loss o f

revenues from diverting wood waste to biomass plants, t o

something that I just became aware of recently .

The Appliance Recycling Centers of America ar e

submitting comments to the PUC regarding the demand sid e

issue I mentioned earlier, which is that several utilitie s

have had programs under energy conservation efforts t o

provide consumers with discounts or rebates if they buy ne w

refrigerators and turn in their old refrigerators .

And ARCA had received and had a contract with

Southern California Edison to handle those refrigerators .

And they do everything, they remove the CFC 12s from th e

compressor coolant system, and the CFC 11 from th e

polystyrofoam, which is insulation in the walls of th e

refrigerator, as well as any of the lubricants or metals an d

materials and they recycle the refrigerator .

With the restructuring, SCE has already looked t o

close down that contract with ARCA, and they're quit e

concerned .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : There's a similar

contract, I think, with PG&E and a facility I visited in th e
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Oakland area .

MS . GILDART: As we're looking into this we'r e

sort of seeing further effects trickling down and are trying

to quantify and identify those .

Any other questions or should we take speakers ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : I had a question .

Was there an oversight hearing on this last week?

I had heard something to the effect . And what, if anything ,

was discussed if you could just boil it down quickly .

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : There was a joint

Assembly hearing of the Natural Resources Committee and th e

Utilities and Commerce Committee, I believe . We were not

invited to testify as had been mentioned at the Board

meeting a couple weeks ago .

I believe the focus was more general on the entir e

issue and that they may be getting into the specific three

areas that Martha mentioned in a later hearing .

MS . GILDART: There's a second hearing thi s

Thursday, I believe, November 10th, where they get into mor e

of the social issues, which would include this recycling ,

lifeline, conservation, diversity issues .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Any other questions?

How about Evan Edgar .

MR . EDGAR : Good morning . Evan Edgar, Californi a

Refuse Removal Council .

7
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This is by far my favorite committee, because yo u

guys tackle the tough questions about biomass and PUC .

I think that this committee could be commended for

taking this issue on and to continue to hear this, becaus e

what happened last month in San Jose was a little bi t

disappointing to industry, because of the fact that we ar e

taking hits still, we're taking the loss of revenue, and w e

can't find a market . We are burying wood waste .

We had hoped to leave San Jose last week with a

letter and the letter that the Waste Board prepared was a n

innocent four-page letter, didn't really get into any har d

questions with respect to taking a position, was merely jus t

a dissertation of what's going on at the -- out there in th e

waste industry and the ripple effects .

I would hope that this issue would be taken u p

again in Sacramento next week with the full Board and tha t

the Chairman could be authorized to sign this letter .

I'm really afraid that this issue could be lost i n

the hallways of Cal EPA .

I understand that we have an election year and I

understand the implications of the election year, but w e

really hope that the Cal EPA could be prodded along . I

believe that this letter could initiate that, the smal l

ripple effect on Cal EPA could ignite the Cal EPA to ge t

involved faster than they have .
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Meanwhile in the field we're still taking hits .

We need something to happen soon .

I was at the PUC hearing in Bakersfield on

November 1 and Ventura on November 2nd .

There has been somewhat of a movement by PUC t o

take this blue book and call it staff driven .

The luster of the blue book here has somewhat bee n

eroded away because of what happened at the oversigh t

committee on October 28th at the Assembly Joint Oversigh t

Committee on lowering the cost of electrical services, b y

Byron Sher . They were not shy about embarrassing the PUC .

The PUC did not look good there .

In fact, the person that did look good wa s

California Energy Commission, Charles Imbrecht . He did a

really good job talking about resource diversity .

So I'm happy to see that there is a meeting o n

December 13th with Charles Imbrecht and the Cal EPA in orde r

to get the statewide perspective . That's good news .

The meeting I heard for November 10th has bee n

cancelled and has been delayed until December, the secon d

joint oversight committee .

This issue will be a good one in January, Februar y

and March and I believe that the nonyard wood waste repor t

is up for annual revision by March 31st .

I believe that is an annual report and that has t o
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be revised each and every year . I believe that that stil l

can become the vehicle as an annual update and that th e

California Waste Management Board can get better numbers

from industry, from the biomass producers, from the landfil l

folks over the next couple months in order to update your

reports of that, you can have some hard numbers to work with

during the upcoming Sher bill that will probably addres s

this PUC restructuring issue .

My recommendation today is that we would like to

see this considered next Wednesday at the full Board

authorizing Chairman Huff to sign the letter to initiate the

PUC to attack this issue .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Okay. I'm sorry that

you're disappointed in what we did in San Jose .

We did talk about how this issue is bigger tha n

just the Waste Board, and I think that the report toda y

fully depicts that .

The Energy Commission, of course, is not part o f

Cal EPA . This also involves Department of Food an d

Agriculture, the Department of Forestry and Fire Prevention .

Neither of them are constituent pieces of the Cal EPA .

Resource Agency is involved with this as well as

Cal EPA .

And I can assure you that Cal EPA has been activ e

in this issue .
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I think it would be premature to send any lette r

before we meet with Chuck . I know Chuck very well . I've

known him for years . I've known him since the '70s . And I

know he's very tenacious .

And I'm looking forward to this meeting and takin g

that meeting as being the real, the real place where plan s

are laid . I mean, that's just my perspective .

MR . EDGAR : After the last couple weeks that we d o

have a little bit more guarded optimism about this PU C

deregulation issue .

I believe that they're going to have an extende d

schedule, aggressive schedule be somewhat delayed, but I

still would like to keep the pressure on, so to speak, i n

order to have this wood waste be diverted from the landfil l

back to the biomass industry .

So we're doing everything possible to raise thi s

issue to the highest level possible in order to have th e

biomass plants reopen their plants so that we can have a new

market, take the market back .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I understand your

perspective . I understand it .

And I know that this sort of following the

internal strategy sometimes doesn't fully reflect all that' s

going on as much as you might like .

But like I said, people are developing the issues .
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And people are doing the homework .

And when you have issues such as lifeline, that' s

big . And that isn't us . That's a lot bigger than our piec e

of the action .

MR . EDGAR : Do you see that nonyard wood wast e

report being utilized as an annual report in order to -- I

think be very timely by March 31st when that report is due ,

that could be a key piece of information as the Sher bill is

moving . I think that information in that report could be

very helpful .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Might be . Sher or some

other author too . Might happen .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Anything ?

MR . EDGAR : Thank you for the time in thi s

committee. I appreciate to have it back here . I look

forward to seeing you next Wednesday on this very same issue

to have the very same testimony .

But we need to keep the Waste Board aware o f

what's going on in the field and we are still burying wood

waste . It's not going away . It's going into the landfill .

Thank you .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Thank you, Evan .

Thank you for the comments on this committee .

At the same time I want you to remember there' s

chairman of two -- there's chairman of Marketing here, and
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chairman --

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : I'm really sad . That' s

okay .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : I don't want to put

anybody down here .

What we don't want this thing to do is to die o n

the vine or in the hallways, just because there's an

election going on .

And I'm sure that you'll keep us up to date on

what's going on, if we miss something . And we'll make sur e

that we put our two cents in .

Thank you .

Did you want to talk, Mr . Judd?

MR. JUDD : Yes, sir .

Mr . Chairman, members, I'm Bob Judd, representin g

the biomass plant owners and operators .

I just have a few things to add to what Evan tol d

you .

The legislative oversight committee indeed has

been postponed with no new date yet set for the second

hearing that will address the environmental and socia l

concerns . Prospectively sometime in December, but not

necessarily so .

At this point I think it's a wait and see .

I think Mr . Sher's position as lead of tha t
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committee is to have those people who have concerns about

the PUC proposal suggest to him what to do .

I think everybody has plenty of information now o n

the factual side, but the solution remains elusive . And I

believe that that committee is waiting until people have a

chance to firm up proposals to come back to them on that .

I'd also suggest that the forum that the Energ y

Commission is going to have in December be not overplayed i n

your mind .

As we're told, this is going to be a broad-base d

meeting, not a strategy session, among agency heads .

And while Mr . Imbrecht is very involved in this ,

there are separate actions going on within the

administration, largely led from the Resources Agency at

this point, that probably have more weight at this time .

In the collaborative process that the Energy

Commission seeks to put in place it's a plan that they've

had, they aired as early as last May .

They have yet to have a meeting on it .

It's meant to bring all of the members of th e

industry together to decide whether there are grounds for

moving forward together .

They had planned a biomass summit for November 1 7

and 18th to discuss this . They found that it was s o

complicated that they have backed off of having a biomas s
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summit and instead have substituted to having this forum t o

decide whether a summit is even necessary .

So I would say while the Energy Commission i s

interested and probably on the right side of the force here ,

the meeting coming up in December is going to be relativel y

nonsubstantial when it comes to coalescing multi-agency

concern and expressing that concern to the PUC .

We would also continue to encourage this committe e

and the Board to make a formal statement of concern abou t

the possible impacts of the PUC proposal to the PUC .

I don't think it has to be a dictionary o f

impacts, but if the Board is not on record the PUC has n o

way of formally recognizing the concern t hat members of this

committee and of the Board have expressed .

So I would second Evan's suggestion that the Boar d

go on record .

We also look forward to working further with your

staff on the data side of this . We are not as concerne d

about the micro impacts of which landfill might be affecte d

more than another landfill . That may be more of a concern

of yours . But we're very concerned that accurate numbers

are used .

There is a significant difference in the impac t

between estimates of one million tons of biomass material s

currently not going to landfill and the industry's estimate ,
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which we believe is clearly the best estimate, which is 2 .2 5

million tons .

It's twice the problem and it shortens landfil l

life twice as fast .

And in the staff reports that the draft materials ,

and recognizing that they're drafts, that we're seein g

numbers are expressed in bone dry tons, which is a technica l

term that our industry uses when we buy fuel, that it has t o

have a certain moisture content for it to be usable as a

fuel in our chambers .

However, the materials that go to landfil l

certainly are not bone dry tons . They're green tons .

And to convert from bone dry tons to green ton s

you essentially -- there's, well, let me say it the othe r

way. If you have green tons and you want to get to bone dry

tons, you multiple by .7 average, so there's a 30 percent

differential in moisture content and weight that is there .

Other activities, just to alert you to the fact ,

Senator Leslie had a meeting yesterday to hear comments fro m

interested parties in the biomass industry in his district .

Senator Leslie's district has more biomass plant s

than any other . He has 12 plants in his district .

And he had a meeting yesterday to gather fact s

which we assume will be the basis of a legislative proposal

at some point and there will be others as well .
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The momentum hasn't relented . I believe this i s

the point I'd like to leave you with . It's moving quickly .

The Resources Agency indicated yesterday in the

meeting that it was two-thirds of the way toward a

recommendation to the administration on how they should dea l

with the biomass issue and how that should be communicate d

to the PUC .

I have a feeling that that process which i s

underway is likely to conclude even before the Energ y

Commission meets .

If any of you have any questions I'd be glad t o

address them .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Any questions, Paul ?

Thank you very much .

MR . JUDD : Final note to close, I mentioned in m y

last testimony that the buy-out issue plants, contracts

being curtailed by PG&E or Edison by mutual consent, lat e

last week the two of our plants, one in Rocklin and one in

Fresno, did sign a long-term curtailment agreement with

PG&E . These have been referenced before .

To my knowledge no other plants are imminently

about to sign agreements with the PUC . So that would leave

38 operating biomass plants at this,time .

Thank you .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Thank you, Mr . Judd .
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We'll move on to Agenda Item No . 4 .

MR. CROPPER : Good morning, Mr . Chairman ,

committee members . I'm Jim Cropper, the Waste Preventio n

and Education Division .

The purpose of this agenda item is to consider th e

contract concept for the collection of telephone directorie s

from Sacramento state offices .

For the past three years as part of Projec t

Recycle's recycling efforts telephone directories have been

collected from state offices located in Sacramento .

In 1992 we collected 63 tons of old telephon e

directories, in 1993, 103 tons, and 1994, 170 tons were

collected .

1994's increase was due to contracting wit h

Sacramento local Conservation Corps .

And contracting allows the Board to collect and

transport a large amount of directories at a relatively lo w

price to a local recycler .

The Board must contract and pay to have th e

directories collected because the directories have really n o

market value and directories are extremely bulky an d

difficult to collect and transport .

Staff believes that this program is very importan t

to the State's recycling efforts and this collection progra m

shows the Board's commitment to recycling and provides for
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the recycling of a highly visible recyclable material .

Also the OTDs will provide feedstock to a loca l

recycler who received a Board recycling market development

zone loan .

The contract would be for up to 8,000 and woul d

include the collection of OTDs from approximately 245 stat e

offices over a six-week period, from January 23rd to

February 28th .

And money to pay for this collection would come

from Project Recycle funds and the IWM account .

And Public Contract Code 12167 allows the Board t o

use money in this fund to offset Project Recycle's recycling

program costs such as the collection of OTDs .

And we would like to recommend that you approve

this contract, the approval is contract concept .

And if you have any questions of me I'd be happy

to answer them .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Paul, you have any

questions on this ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : No ; not really .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Mr . Huff, any

questions on this ?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : As I understand, our new

contract process we wouldn't be in this - -

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : Were this to come
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forward next year you could make a determination that thi s

were a housekeeping matter and then it would be dealt with

through the executive director awarding the contract .

In this case since we hadn't had that step occur ,

to keep it consistent with your not having had th e

opportunity to make that determination up front, we wer e

treating it as a discretionary contract which would have th e

concept approved by the Board and then all subsequen t

activities because of the dollar amount would fall under th e

delegated authority to the director .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : This is a lousy $8,00 0

contract .

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : Right .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : We really don't want to

take it up either .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : I move it .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Moved .

Second ?

Roll call .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Board Members Huff .

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Aye .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Relis .

COMMITTEE MEMBER RELIS : Aye .

COMMITTEE SECRETARY ALLAN : Chairman Egigian .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Aye .
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CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : Consent on that item?

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : Consent .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Consent .

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : Thank you .

Did you want staff to make the PUC presentation a t

the Board as well? It was just an - -

COMMITTEE MEMBER HUFF : That was a good

presentation, as a matter of fact .

CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR RICE : Okay .

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN EGIGIAN : Do we have any other

business to come before this Board, this committee?

If not, we are adjourned .

(Thereupon the hearing was adjourned at

10 :54 a .m . )
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